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North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources 

Michael F. Easley, Governor 

To: 

WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION 
HAZARDOUS WASTE SECTION 

NOTICE OF VIOLATION 

Staclean Diffuser Company 
2205 Executive Drive 
Salisbury, NC 28039 
Attn: Kathryn Johnson 

Docket#: 2006-110 
Date oflnspection: February 8, 2006 
Facility Type: SQG 
EPA ID#: NCR 000 001 750 

William G. Ross Jr , Secretary 

On December !8, 1980, the State of North Carolina, Hazardous Waste Section (State) 
was authorized to operate the State RCRA hazardous waste program under the Solid 
Waste Management Act (ACT), N.C.G.S. BOA, Article 9 and rules promulgated thereto 
at 15A NCAC 13A (Rules) in lieu of the federal RCRA program. 

On February 8, 2006 Sean Morris, Waste Management Specialist, inspected your facilit 
for compliance with North Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Rules. During th t 
investigation, the following violations were noted: 

Citation Specifics 

1. 40 CFR 262.11, adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A .0107, states th t a 
generator must determine if solid waste is a hazardous waste. This may be ne 
by either testing the waste or by applying knowledge of the hazar ous 
characteristic of the waste. 

Staclean Diffuser Company is in violation of this regulation in that Mr. Patt rson 
stated that all waste lamps and waste solvent wipes are disposed as solid aste. 
Mr. Patterson could not provide any information or documentation to show at a 
waste determination has been conducted on waste lamps or solvent wipes 
generated at the facility. 
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2. 40 CFR 262.34 (c}(1)(i), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A .0107, and 
referenced at 40 CFR 265.173 (a), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A .0110, 
states that a container holding hazardous waste must always be closed during storage, 
except when it is necessary to add or remove waste. 

Staclean Diffuser Company is in violation of this regulation in that the 55-gallo 
container of hazardous waste, located in the Big Building Area, was not properly close 
at the time of the inspection. 

3. 40 CFR 262.34 (c}(l)(ii), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A .0107, 
states that satellite containers must be labeled with the words "hazardous waste" 
or other words that identify the contents of the containers. 

Staclean Diffuser Company is in violation of this regulation in that (1) 55-gal n 
container and (2) 5-gallon containers of hazardous waste, located in the Diffu er 
Cleaning Area, and (!) 55-gallon container of hazardous waste, located in the tg 
Building Area, were not properly labeled with the words "Hazardous Waste" or o er 
words that described the contents of the containers. 

4. 40 CFR 262.34 (d)(4}, adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A .0107, and 
referenced at 40 CFR 265.32 (c), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A .0110, 
states that all facilities must be equipped with portable fire extinguishers, fire control 
equipment (including special extinguishing equipment, such as that using foam, ine gas, 
or dry chemicals), spill control equipment, and decontamination equipment. 

Staclean Diffuser Company is in violation of this regulation in that Mr. Patterson stated 
that the facility is not equipped with any type of spill control equipment. 

5. 40 CFR 262.34 (d) (4), adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A .0107, and 
referenced at 40 CFR 265.37 (a) adopted by reference at !SA NCAC l3A 
.0110, states that arrangements must be made with all local authorities for the 
potential need for services. 

Staclean Diffuser Company is in violation of this regulation in that Mr. Patterso did not 
have any knowledge or documentation to demonstrate that arrangements have b en made 
with local emergency response agencies. 

6. 40 CFR 262.34 (d)(5)(ii}, adopted by reference at 15A NCAC 13A .0107, tes that a 
generator must post the following information next to the telephone: 

(A) The names and telephone number of the emergency coordinator. 
(B) Location of fire extinguishers and spill control material and, if present, fir alarms. 
(C) The telephone of the fire department unless the facility has a direct alarm. 

Staclean Diffuser Company is in violation of this regulation in that the fac lity has not 
developed or posted a small quantity generator contingency plan. 
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You are hereby required to comply with the noted violations by March 17, 2006 at which 
time a follow up visit will be performed. If compliance with the violations noted above 
are not met, pursuant to N.C.G.S. 130A-22 (a) and 15A NCAC 13A .0701-.0707, an 
administrative penalty of up to $25,000.00 per day may be assessed for violation of the 
hazardous waste law or regulations. 

In further satisfaction of Docket #2006-11 0, Staclean Diffuser Company shall provide a 
written certification with supporting documentation on company letterhead confirming 
the noted compliance schedule has been completed. Mail this certification to Mr. Sean 
Morris - Waste Management Specialist at NCDENR-Division of Waste Management, 
Hazardous Waste Section, 610 East Center Avenue, Suite 301, Mooresville, North 
Carolina 28115. 

Ell.'!!, ,.._ 7.00!.. 
(Date) .......-Nf Hazardous Waste Section 

I, J. Sean Morris, hereby certify that I have personally served a copy of this Notice on: 
Ms. Kathryn Johnson at Staclean Diffuser Company by certified mail. 

SENT CERTIFIED MAIL 
(Recipient Signature) 

Cc: Mr. Jesse Wells, NC Hazardous Waste Section 
Central Files 
MRO files 
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NC DEPT OF ENVIRONMENT & NATURAL RESOURCES 
DIVISION OF WASTE MANAGEMENT 

HAZARDOUS WASTE SECTION 

RCRA INSPECTION REPORT 

1. Facility Information: Staclean Diffuser Company 
601 South Long Street 
East Spencer, N.C. 28039 
NCR 000 001 750, Small Quantity Generator 

Mailing: PO Drawer 1147 
Salisbury, NC 28145-1147 

Central Office: 2205 Executive Drive 
Salisbury, NC 28039 

2. Facility Contact: Ms. Kathryn Johnson 
Mr. Charlie Patterson, Plant Manager 
704-63 6-8697 

3. Survey Participants: Mr. Dan Woodrome, Project Coordinator 
Mr. Charlie Patterson, Plant Manager 
Mr. Sean Morris, Waste Management Specialist 

4. Date of Inspection: February 8, 2006 

Date of Report: February 13, 2006 

5. Purpose of Inspection: To determine compliance with 40 CPR 260-279 

6. Facility Description: 

On February 8, 2006 I conducted an unannounced compliance inspection at Staclean 
Diffuser Company, located in East Spencer, NC. I met with Mr. Dan Woodrome and 
Mr. Charlie Patterson during the inspection. Staclean Diffuser Company operates as a 
small quantity generator of hazardous waste and is 57,000 square feet in size. The 
facility has been in operation at the current location since 1988 and has approximately 
IS-employees. The facility operates as a metal fabrication shop and manufactures 
metal diffusers for use in dust collectors. The facility also manufactures dust 
collection systems. Hazardous waste is generated in the diffuser cleaning operation 
and in the painting operation. The facility operates a 50-gallon mineral spirits washer 
for removing oils from diffusers. The mineral spirits is used until dirty and then is 
managed as hazardous waste. The facility generates approximately (20-55) gallons of 
hazardous waste on a monthly basis. Mr. Patterson stated that all waste lamps and 
waste solvent wipes are disposed as solid waste (see deficiency section). The facility 
contracts an outside painting company for most of the painting projects. 
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7. Waste Type: 

DOO 1, waste petroleum distillates 
FOOS, DOOl, waste paint material 

8. Areas oflnspection: 

Manifests: 

Hazardous waste manifests were reviewed for the past three years. All manifests 
documented approved transporters and TSD facilities. The manifests looked to be 
completed correctly. Land Disposal Restriction forms were available. Several 
manifests had to be faxed to the facility at the time of the inspection. A 
recommendation was made to keep a copy of all signed manifests onsite. 

Transporters: Maumee Express, Inc- NJD 986 607 380 
Freehold Cartage, Inc - NJD 054 126 164 

TSD's: Southeastern Chemical & Solvent - SCD 036 275 626 

Weekly Inspections: 

The facility conducts and documents weekly inspections at the hazardous waste 
storage area. 

Training: 

The facility conducts new employee training. Hazardous waste management is 
reviewed at that time. 

Emergency Preparedness: 

The facility is maintained to prevent fire or releases. The emergency coordinator 
is Charlie Patterson. The facility is equipped with fire extinguishers but was not 
equipped with spill control equipment (see deficiency section). All fire equipment 
is tested annually by an outside contractor and monthly by facility personnel. The 
facility is equipped with air horns for alarm signals. Arrangements with 
emergency agencies have not been made, a guidance document was provided to 
the facility at the time of the inspection (see deficiency section). 

Contingency Plan: 

The facility has not developed or posted the required contingency plan (see 
deficiency section). 
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Accumulation Areas: 

There were two satellite accumulation areas at the facility at the time of the 
inspection. 

I. Diffuser Cleaning Area - There was (1) 55-gallon and (2) 5-gallon 
containers of waste mineral spirits at the accumulation area. The 
containers were properly closed but were not properly labeled at the time 
of the inspection (see deficiency section). 

2. Big Building- There was(!) 55-gallon container of waste paint material 
at the accumulation area. The container was not properly closed or labeled 
at the time of the inspection (see deficiency section). 

Hazardous Waste Storage Areas: 

There was one hazardous waste storage area at the facility. 

1. Central Storage Area- There were (3) 55-gallon containers of hazardous 
waste liquids at this area. The containers were properly labeled and dated 
at the time of the inspection. The storage area is equipped with a fire 
extinguisher and Mr. Patterson stated that the "Buddy System" is used 
when moving containers. It was recommended that a two-way radio be 
placed in the storage area (see recommendation section). The storage area 
is labeled. All storage containers are located on a secondary containment 
pallet. It was recommended that the facility use larger "Hazardous Waste" 
labels on the storage containers (see recommendation section). 

Used Oil and Universal Waste: 

Used oil is generated from general machinery maintenance and from the diffuser 
cleaning operation. Used oil is mixed with waste mineral spirits and handled as 
hazardous waste. 

The facility generates waste fluorescent lamps and waste hi-intensity lamps. 
Facility personnel stated that all waste lamps are disposed as solid waste (see 
deficiency section). Waste lamps are placed in the roll off container located 
behind the facility. 

9. Site Deficiencies: 

• 40 CFR 262.11 - Staclean Diffuser Company is in violation of this regulation in 
that Mr. Patterson stated that all waste lamps and waste solvent wipes are 
disposed as solid waste. Mr. Patterson could not provide any information or 
documentation to show that a waste determination has been conducted on waste 
lamps or solvent wipes generated at the facility. 
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• 40 CFR 262.34 (c)(l)(i) referenced at 40 CFR 265.173 (a)- Staclean Diffuser 
Company is in violation of this regulation in that the 55-gallon container of 
hazardous waste, located in the Big Building Area, was not properly closed at the 
time of the inspection. 

• 40 CFR 262.34 (c)(l)(ii) - Staclean Diffuser Company is in violation of this 
regulation in that (1) 55-gallon container and (2) 5-gallon containers of hazardous 
waste, located in the Diffuser Cleaning Area, and (1) 55-gallon container of 
hazardous waste, located in the Big Building Area, were not properly labeled with 
the words "Hazardous Waste" or other words that described the contents of the 
containers. 

• 40 CFR 262.34 (d)(4) referenced at 40 CFR 265.32 (c) - Staclean Diffuser 
Company is in violation of this regulation in that Mr. Patterson stated that the 
facility is not equipped with any type of spill control equipment. 

• 40 CFR 262.34 (d)(4) referenced at 40 CFR 265.37 (a) - Staclean Diffuser 
Company is in violation of this regulation in that Mr. Patterson did not have any 
knowledge or documentation to demonstrate that arrangements have been made 
with local emergency response agencies. 

• 40 CFR 262.34 (d)(S)(ii) - Staclean Diffuser Company is in violation of this 
regulation in that the facility has not developed or posted a small quantity 
generator contingency plan. 
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10. Recommendations: 

cc: 

• It is recommended that a container be established for the collection of broken 
universal waste lamps and for waste batteries generated at the facility. All 
universal waste must be sent to a proper disposal facility. 

• It is strongly recommended that a two-way radio be placed in the Central Storage 
Area. 

• It is recommended that the facility us larger labels to identify hazardous waste 
containers in the Central Storage Area. 

• It is recommended that the facility maintain all signed hazardous waste manifests 
onsite. 

• It is strongly recommended that a lid be placed over the mineral spirits washing 
unit while in operation to eliminate the possibility of material from splashing out 
of the washer and onto the ground. 

SENT VIA CERTIFIED MAIL 
FACILITY CONTACT 

MRO Files 
I esse Wells, Western Area Compliance Supetvisor 
Central Office Files 
Kathryn Johnson, Staclean Diffuser Company 
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